

La Canada USD

Administrative Regulation

Criminal Record Check

AR 4212.5

Personnel

The Superintendent or designee shall not hire or retain in employment, in a certificated or classified position, a person who has been convicted of a violent or serious felony as defined in Penal Code 667.5(c) or 1192.7(c), a controlled substance offense as defined in Education Code 44011, or a sex offense as defined in Education Code 44010. However, the Superintendent or designee shall not deny or terminate employment solely on the basis of that conviction if: (Education Code 44830.1, 44836, 45122.1, 45123)

1. The conviction for a violent or serious felony, controlled substance offense, or sex offense is reversed and the person is acquitted of the offense in a new trial or the charges against the person are dismissed, unless the sex offense for which the conviction is dismissed pursuant to Penal Code 1203.4 involves a victim who was a minor.
2. A person convicted of a violent or serious felony has obtained a certificate of rehabilitation or a pardon.
3. A person who has been convicted of a serious felony, that is not also a violent felony, proves to the sentencing court that he/she has been rehabilitated for purposes of school employment for at least one year.
4. A person who has been convicted of a controlled substance offense is applying for or is employed in a certificated position and has a credential issued by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing.
5. A person who has been convicted of a controlled substance offense is applying for or is employed in a classified position and has been determined by the Governing Board, from the evidence presented, to have been rehabilitated for at least five years.

(cf. 4112 - Appointment and Conditions of Employment)

(cf. 4112.2 - Certification)

(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

(cf. 4127/4227/4327 - Temporary Athletic Team Coaches)

(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

A certificated employee may be hired by the district without obtaining a criminal record summary if that employee is employed as a certificated employee in another California school district and became a permanent employee of another California school district as of October 1, 1997. (Education Code 44830.1, 44836)

The Superintendent or designee shall not issue a temporary certificate of clearance to a person whose application for a credential, certificate, or permit is being processed by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing if that person has been convicted of a violent or serious felony, unless the person is otherwise exempt pursuant to Education Code 44332.6 or 44830.1. (Education Code 44332.5, 44332.6)

Pre-Employment Record Check

Applicants for Employment

Each person to be employed in a classified position, including temporary, substitute and part-time positions, shall be required to submit fingerprint identification data. However, secondary school students attending a district school who are to be employed in a temporary or part-time position shall not be required to submit fingerprint identification data. (Education Code 45125)

The Superintendent or designee shall ~~ensure~~ **require** that each person to be employed submits **his/her** fingerprints, either electronically through the Live Scan system ~~or on fingerprint identification card, for processing~~ **so that a criminal record check may be conducted** by the Department of Justice. ~~If the district is using the Live Scan system,~~ The Superintendent or designee shall ~~also~~ provide the applicant with a Live Scan request form and a list of nearby Live Scan locations.

The district may charge the applicant a fee for processing the application as specified in law. If the applicant is subsequently hired by the district within 30 days of the application, the fee may be reimbursed to the applicant. (Education Code 45125)

The Superintendent or designee shall request the Department of Justice (**DOJ**) to forward one copy of the applicant's fingerprint identification data to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for the purpose of obtaining any record of previous convictions ~~of~~ the applicant: (Education Code 45125)

When a person is applying for a classified position, the Superintendent or designee shall request that the DOJ also obtain a criminal record check through the Federal Bureau of Investigation whenever the applicant meets one of the following conditions: (Education Code 45125)

1. **The applicant** has not resided in the State of California for at least one year immediately preceding the application for employment
2. **The applicant** has resided **in California** for more than one year, but less than seven years, ~~in the State of California~~ and the Department of Justice **DOJ** has ascertained that the person was convicted of a sex offense where the victim was a minor or a drug offense where an element of the offense is either the distribution to or the use of a controlled substance by a minor

The Superintendent or designee shall immediately notify the DOJ when an applicant who has submitted his/her fingerprints to the DOJ is not subsequently employed by the district. (Penal Code 11105.2)

Subsequent Arrest Notification

The Superintendent or designee shall enter into a contract with the DOJ to receive notification of subsequent arrests resulting in conviction of any person whose fingerprints have been submitted to the DOJ. (Education Code 44830.1, 45125; Penal Code 11105.2)

Upon telephone or email notification by the DOJ that a current temporary employee, substitute employee, or probationary employee serving before March 15 of his/her second probationary year has been convicted of a violent or serious felony, the Superintendent or designee shall immediately place that employee on leave without pay. (Education Code 44830.1, 45122.1)

**(cf. 4116 - Probationary/Permanent Status)
(cf. 4121 - Temporary/Substitute Personnel)**

When the district receives written electronic notification by the DOJ of the fact of conviction, the temporary employee, substitute employee, or probationary employee serving before March 15 of his/her second probationary year shall be terminated automatically unless the employee challenges the DOJ record and the DOJ withdraws its notification in writing. Upon receipt of the written withdrawal of notification by the DOJ, the Superintendent or designee shall immediately reinstate that employee with full restoration of salary and benefits for the period of time from the suspension without pay to the reinstatement if the employee is still employed by the district. (Education Code 44830.1, 45122.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall immediately notify the DOJ whenever a person whose fingerprints are maintained by the DOJ is terminated. (Penal Code 11105.2)

Notification of Applicant/Employee

The Superintendent or designee shall expeditiously furnish a copy of any DOJ notification to the applicant or employee to whom it relates if the information is a basis for an adverse employment decision. The copy shall be delivered in person or to the last contact information provided by the applicant or employee. (Penal Code 11105, 11105.2)

(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)

The Governing Board shall not employ an applicant until the Department of Justice completes its check of the state criminal history files. (Education Code 45125)

(cf. 4212 - Appointment and Conditions of Employment)

Maintenance of Records

The Superintendent shall designate at least one custodian of records who shall be responsible for the security, storage, dissemination, and destruction of all Criminal Offender Record Information (CORI) furnished to the district and shall serve as the primary contact for the DOJ for any related issues. (Penal Code 11102.2)

An employee designated as custodian of records shall receive a criminal background check clearance from the DOJ prior to serving in that capacity. (Penal Code 11102.2)

The custodian of records shall sign and return to the DOJ the Employee Statement Form acknowledging his/her understanding of the laws prohibiting misuse of CORI. In addition, the custodian of records shall ensure that any individual with access to CORI has on file a signed Employee Statement Form.

To ensure its confidentiality, CORI shall be accessible only to the custodian of records and shall be kept in a locked file separate from other files. CORI shall be used only for the purpose for which it is requested and its contents shall not be disclosed or reproduced. (Education Code 44830.1, 45125)

(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information)

(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information)

Once a hiring determination is made, the applicant's CORI shall be destroyed to the extent that the identity of the individual can no longer be reasonably ascertained. (Education Code 44830.1, 45125; 11 CCR 708)

The Superintendent or designee shall immediately notify the DOJ whenever a designated custodian of records ceases to serve in that capacity. (Penal Code 11102.2)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that no person is hired who has been convicted of a violent or serious felony as listed in Penal Code 667.5(c) or 1192.7(c), unless that person has obtained a certificate of rehabilitation and a pardon. (Education Code 45122.1)

The Superintendent or designee may hire a classified employee without waiting for the disposition of the employee's criminal history files upon a determination that an emergency or exceptional situation exists and that a delay in filling the position would endanger student health or safety. (Education Code 45125)

The Superintendent or designee may ask the local law enforcement agency to conduct an automated records check to ascertain whether a prospective classified employee has a criminal record. This information shall be requested only for applicant whom the district intends to hire at the time the check is requested. (Education Code 45125.5)

(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files)

(cf. 4112.62/4212.62/4312.62 - Maintenance of Criminal Offender Records)

Current Employees

Upon notification by telephone from the Department of Justice that a current temporary, substitute or probationary classified employee has been convicted of a violent or serious felony, the Superintendent or designee shall immediately place that employee on leave without pay, unless the employee has received a certificate of rehabilitation and a pardon. (Education Code 45122.1)

Upon receipt of written notification of the fact of conviction from the Department of Justice, the Superintendent or designee shall terminate the temporary, substitute or probationary employee without regard to any other procedure for termination specified in the Education Code or district procedures, unless that employee has received a certificate of rehabilitation and a pardon. (Education Code 45122.1)

(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

If the employee challenges the Department of Justice record and the Department of Justice withdraws in writing its notification, the Superintendent or designee shall immediately reinstate the employee with full restoration of salary and benefits. (Education Code 45122.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall request subsequent arrest service from the Department of Justice as provided under Penal code 11105.2. (Education Code 45125)

Interagency Agreement

Subject to an interagency agreement with other school districts, the district shall submit and receive CORI on behalf of all participating districts. (Education Code 44830.2, 45125.01)

Upon receipt from the DOJ of a report of conviction of a serious or violent felony, the district shall communicate that fact to participating districts and shall remove the affected employee from the common list of persons eligible for employment. (Education Code 44830.2, 45125.01)

In addition, upon receipt from the DOJ of a criminal history record or report of subsequent arrest for any person on a common list of persons eligible for employment, the district shall give notice to the superintendent of any participating district, or the person designated in writing by that superintendent, that the report is available for inspection on a confidential basis by the superintendent or the authorized designee. The report shall be made available at the district office for 30 days following the receipt of the notice. (Education Code 44830.2, 45125.01)

The district shall not release a copy of that information to any participating district or any other person. In addition, the district shall retain or dispose of the information in the manner specified in law and in this administrative regulation after all participating districts have had an opportunity to inspect it in accordance with law. (Education Code 44830.2, 45125.01)

The district shall maintain a record of all persons to whom the information has been shown and shall make this record available to the DOJ. (Education Code 44830.2, 45125.01)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

44010 Sex offense

44011 Controlled substance offense

44332-44332.6 Temporary certificate of clearance

44346.1 Applicants for credential, conviction of a violent or serious felony

44830.1 Certificated employees, conviction of a violent or serious felony

44830.2 Certificated employees; interagency agreements for sharing criminal record information

44836 Conviction of a sex or controlled substance offense

44932 Grounds for dismissal of permanent certificated employees

45122.1 Classified employees, conviction of a violent or serious felony

45125 Use of personal identification cards to ascertain conviction of crime

45125.01 Classified employees; interagency agreement for sharing criminal best information

45125.5 Automated records check

45126 Duty of Department of Justice to furnish information

49024 Activity supervisor clearance certificates

PENAL CODE

667.5 Violent felonies

1192.7 Serious felonies

1203.4 Dismissal of conviction

11075-11081 Criminal record dissemination

~~11105-11105.75 Criminal identification~~

11102.2 Maintenance of criminal offender records; custodian of records

11105 Access to criminal history information

11105.2 Subsequent arrest notification

11105.3 Record of conviction involving sex crimes, drug crimes or crimes of violence; availability to employer for applicants for positions with supervisory or disciplinary power over minors

11140-11144 Furnishing of state criminal history information

13300-13305 Local summary criminal history information

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 11

~~703 Release of criminal offender record information~~

~~708 Destruction of criminal offender record information~~

701-708 Criminal offender record information

720-724 Incomplete criminal history information

994-994.15 Certification of individuals who take fingerprint impressions

COURT DECISIONS

Central Valley Chapter of the 7th Step Foundation Inc. v. Evelle J. Younger, (1989) 214 Cal. App. 3d 145

Management Resources:

WEB SITES

Office of the Attorney General, Department of Justice, Background Checks:

<http://www.oag.ca.gov/fingerprints> <http://www.caag.state.ca.us/app>

CSBA: <http://www.csba.org>

Administrative LA CANADA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Approval: February 4, 2003 La Canada Flintridge, CA

Revised: December 6, 2016

La Canada USD

Board Policy

Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

BP 0410

Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans

The Governing Board is committed to equal opportunity for all individuals in education. District programs and activities shall be free from discrimination based on gender, sex, race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, ethnic group identification, marital or parental status, physical or mental disability, sexual orientation or the perception of one or more of such characteristics. The Board shall promote programs which ensure that discriminatory practices are eliminated in all district activities.

(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment)

(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation)

(cf. 4033 – Lactation Accommodation)

(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment)

(cf. 5131.2 – Bullying)

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students)

(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

(cf. 6164.4 - Identification of Individuals for Special Education)

(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education under Section 504)

(cf. 6178 - Vocational Education)

(cf. 6200 - Adult Education)

Annually, the Superintendent or designee shall review district programs and activities to ensure the removal of any barrier that may unlawfully prevent an individual or group in any of the protected categories stated above from accessing district programs and activities, including the use of facilities. He/she shall take prompt, reasonable actions to remove any identified barrier. The Superintendent or designee shall report his/her findings and recommendations to the Board after each review.

(cf. 1330 - Use of Facilities)

Pursuant to 34 CFR 104.8 and 34 CFR 106.9, the Superintendent or designee shall notify students, parents/guardians, employees, employee organizations, applicants for admission and employment, and sources of referral for applicants about the district's policy on nondiscrimination and related complaint procedures. Such notification shall be included in each announcement, bulletin, catalog, handbook, application form, or other materials distributed to these groups.

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

The district's nondiscrimination policy and related informational materials shall be published in a format that parents/guardians can understand. In addition, when 15 percent or more of a school's students speak a single primary language other than English, those materials shall be translated into that other language.

Access for Individuals with Disabilities

District programs and facilities, viewed in their entirety, ~~shall be readily accessible to individuals with handicaps. The superintendent or designee~~ shall be in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act **and any implementing standards and/or regulations.**

(cf. 6163.2 - Animals At School)
(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan)
(cf. 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district provides auxiliary aids and services when necessary to afford individuals with disabilities equal opportunity to participate in or enjoy the benefits of a service, program or activity. These aids and services may include, but are not limited to, qualified interpreters or readers, assistive listening devices, note-takers, written materials, taped text, and Braille or large print materials.

(cf. 5124 - Communication with Parents/Guardians)
(cf. 6020 – Parent Involvement)

Individuals with disabilities shall notify the Superintendent or principal if they have a disability that requires special assistance or services. Reasonable notification should be given prior to the school-sponsored function, program or meeting.

(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)

~~The Superintendent or designee shall notify students, parents/guardians, employees, employee organizations and applicants for admission and employment, and sources of referral for applicants about the district's policy on nondiscrimination. Such notification shall be included in each announcement, bulletin, catalog, application form or other recruitment materials distributed to these groups. (34 CFR 104.8, 106.9)~~

~~The Superintendent or designee shall also provide information about related complaint procedures.~~

~~(cf. 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures)~~

~~(cf. 4031 Complaints Concerning Discrimination in Employment)~~

~~In compliance with law, the district's nondiscrimination policy shall be published in the individual's primary language to the extent practicable.~~

~~(cf. 5145.6 Parental Notifications)~~

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination

48985 Notices to parents in language other than English

51007 Legislative intent: state policy

GOVERNMENT CODE

11000 Definitions

11135 Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by the state

11138 Rules and regulations

12900-12996 Fair Employment and Housing Act

54953.2 Brown Act compliance with Americans with Disabilities Act

PENAL CODE

422.55 Interference with constitutional right or privilege

422.6 Interference with constitutional right or privilege

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

4600-4687 Uniform complaint procedures

4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs receiving state financial assistance

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1400-1482 Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act

1681-1688 Discrimination based on sex or blindness, Title IX

2301-2415 Carl D. Perkins Vocational and Applied Technology Act

6311 State plans

6312 Local education agency plans

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29

794 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

2000e-2000e-17 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended

2000h-2000h-6 Title IX

12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28

35.101-35.190 Americans with Disabilities Act

36.303 Auxiliary aids and services

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34

100.1-100.13 Nondiscrimination in federal programs, effectuating Title VI
104.1-104.39 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973
106.1-106.61 Discrimination on the basis of sex, effectuating Title IX, especially:
106.9 Dissemination of policy

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014

Interim Guidance regarding Transgender Students, Privacy, and Facilities, September 27, 2013

Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE OF CIVIL RIGHTS
PUBLICATIONS

Protecting Students from Harassment and Hate Crime, January, 1999

Notice of Non-Discrimination, January, 1999

Nondiscrimination in Employment Practices in Education, August, 1991

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS

2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design, September 2010

WEB SITES

U.S. Department of Education, Office of Civil Rights: <http://www.ed.gov/offices/OCR>

~~CDE~~ **California Department of Education:** <http://www.cde.ca.gov>

CSBA: <http://www.csba.org>

California Safe Schools Coalition: <http://www.casafeschoolscoalition.org>

Pacific ADA Center: <http://www.adapacific.org>

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:
<http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr>

U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Americans with Disabilities Act:
<http://www.ada.gov>

~~Pacific Disability and Business Technical Assistance Center:~~ <http://www.pacdbtac.org>

Policy

Adopted: May 8, 2007

Revised: December 6, 2016

LA CAÑADA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

La Cañada Flintridge, California

La Canada USD

Board Policy

Employment Of Relatives

BP 4112.8 4212.8, 4312.8

Personnel

In order to preclude situations which could bring about a conflict of interest for members of the administrative staff, an employee shall not be appointed to a position where a member of his/her immediate family currently maintains or may maintain in the future supervisory or evaluation responsibilities for the position.

The Governing Board desires to maximize staff and community confidence in district hiring, promotion, and other employment decisions by promoting practices that are free of conflicts of interest or the appearance of impropriety.

(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment)

(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest)

The Board prohibits the appointment of any person to a position for which his/her relative maintain ~~management~~ immediate, supervisory, evaluation, or promotion responsibilities for him/her and would prohibit an employee from participating in any decision that singularly applies to any of his/her relatives.

(cf. 4111/4211/4311 - Recruitment and Selection)

(cf. 4115 - Evaluation/Supervision)

(cf. 4215 - Evaluation/Supervision)

(cf. 4315 - Evaluation/Supervision)

For purposes of this policy, relative includes the individual's spouse, domestic partner, parents, grandparents, great-grandparents, children, grandchildren, great-grandchildren, brothers, sisters, aunts, uncles, nieces, nephews, and the similar family of the individual's spouse or domestic partner.

Immediate family members may be employed at the same department or work location with the approval of the Superintendent or designee.

(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest)

In addition, the Superintendent or designee may determine, on a case-by-case basis, whether to appoint a person to a position in the same department or facility as an employee with whom he/she maintains a personal relationship when that relationship has the potential to create (1) an adverse impact on supervision, safety, security, or morale of other district employees or (2) a conflict of interest for the individuals involved which is greater because of the their relationship than it would be for another person.

An employee shall notify his/her supervisor within 30 days of any change in his/her circumstances that may constitute a violation of this policy.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

35107 School district employees

FAMILY CODE

297-297.5 Rights, protections, benefits under the law; registered domestic partners

GOVERNMENT CODE

1090-1098 Prohibitions applicable to specified officers

12940 Unlawful employment practices

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2

7292.0-7292.6 Marital status discrimination, especially:

7292.5 Employee selection

Management Resources:

WEB SITES

California Department of Fair Employment and Housing: <http://www.dfeh.ca.gov>

Institute for Local Government: <http://www.cacities.org/index.jsp?zone=ilsg>

~~**Legal Reference:**~~

~~**GOVERNMENT CODE**~~

~~12940 Unlawful employment practices, exceptions~~

Policy

adopted: January 16, 1996

revised: December 6, 2016

LA CANADA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

La Canada Flintridge, California